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CITY OF CENTER HILL
94 S VIRGINIA AVE/P.O. BOX 649
CENTER HILL, FL 33514
352-793-4431
FAX 352-568-2264

February 11, 2020

To the Honorable Mayor, and Members of
the City Council
City of Center Hill, Florida

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of Center Hill, Florida,
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 is hereby submitted pursuant to Florida
Statutes Chapter 166.241(4) and Chapter 10,500 of the Rules of the Auditor General
of the State of Florida. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with
the City. To the best of my knowledge the data presented are accurate in all
material aspects; the information is presented in a manner designed to fairly set
forth the financial position and results of operation of the City as measured by the
financial activity of its various funds; and all disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain a maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs are included.
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three major sections,

Government Structure

The City of Center Hill is operated under Mayor-Council form of government, policymaking
and legislative authorities are vested in the City Council that consists of five members.

The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the
budget, and making appointments for: cemetery board, the police chief, and city engineer. In
addition, the City Council has the duty of contracting with the City Attorney, and the City's
Independent Auditor.

The City Clerk is responsible for carrying out the policies of the Council, overseeing the day-
to-day operations.

The City of Center Hill, incorporated in 1925, is located in Central Florida.

Discussion on Operations of the Enterprise Fund

Water and Sanitation fund operating revenues decreased by $14,116 in fiscal year 2019. Water
and Sanitation fund operating expenditures increased by $425 from $249,260 in fiscal year
2018 to $249,685 in fiscal year 2019.



Local Economic Condition & Qutlook

Center Hill is reported as being one of the fastest growing cities next to Bushnell and
Wildwood. Center Hill is strategically located close to Interstate 75 and the Florida Turnpike.
Our location provides easy transportation access to both of these metropolitan areas.

Major Incentives

Based on current trends and projected growth, it is anticipated that the outer parts of the City
will have the most impact on the commercial sector of the City of Center Hill. As such, it will
present the City with significant challenges in order to preserve adopted level of service of its
current infrastructure while allowing quality development in the area: however, the projected
growth will also bring extra revenue that is much needed to provide the infrastructure that the
City is facing in the upcoming year.

Accounting and Administrative Controls

In designing the City's accounting system consideration was given to the adequacy of internal
accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding:

1. The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and

2, The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and
~ maintaining accountability for assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:
1. The cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
2. The evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments of
Management.

[ believe that the Cify's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide
reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

The City of Center Hill maintains budgetary controls to ensure that compliance with legal
provisions contained in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council. Annual
budgets are legally adopted for the activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund
(Transportation and Cemetery), and the Enterprise Fund (Water and Sanitation), Budgets are
controlled at the department level by the City Clerk who is authorized to transfer budgeted
amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total
revenues, reserves, or expenditures of any fund must be approved by a majority vote of the City
Council.

Cash Management

Cash is invested in either money-market accounts or in certificates of deposit which are insured
by Federal depository insurance and/or collateralized with securities held in Florida's multiple
financial institution collateral pool. The criteria used for placement of the City's funds include:

1. Minimize risk to the invested capital.

2. Maintain reasonable liquidity.

3. Maximize return,

if



Risk Management

The City of Center Hill is insured for property, auto, general and professional liability and
workers compensation. The City provides health and life insurance to employees.

Retirement/Pension

On November 1, 2004, the City adopted resolution 2004-08 to enter all eligible employees into
the Florida Retirement System. The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable
are provided in various acts of the Florida Legislature, These acts provide that employers, such
as the City, are required to contribute 11.26% from 10/1/18 to 6/30/19 and 11.47% from 7/1/18
to 9/30/19 of the compensation for regular members, 27.50% from 10/1/18 to 6/30/19 and
28.48% from 7/1/18 to 9/30/19 for special risk and 12.26% for retired police from 10/1/18 to
6/30/19 and 12.81% from 7/1/18 to 9/30/19. The City's contributions and accrued benefits to the
System for the year ended September 30, 2019 is $31,474.

Beginning July 1, 2011, the FRS statutory contributions changed, whereby employees were
required to make a 3% contribution to the total contributions submitted, The employees’ 3%
contribution fo the system for the year ended September 30, 2019 is $6,595.

Other Information

Florida Statutes require that an annual financial audit be performed by an independent certified
public accountant. This year the audit was performed by Linda L. Thigpen, P.A., Certified
Public Accountants,

Acknowledgement

This report represents numerous hours of preparation and is made possible by the dedicated
efforts of the City's Administrative Department. I would like to express my appreciation to all
staff members who contribute to and maintain the records upon which this report is based. I also
thank the Mayor and City Council Members for their interest and support in planning and
conduction of the operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

D orks

Diane Lamb
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LINDA L. THIGPEN, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants
Linda L. Thigpen, CPA Lori G. Maddox, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of
The City Council
City of Center Hill, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate blended component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Center Hill, Florida as of and for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2019, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Center Hill's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opiniom, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate blended component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Center Hill, as of
September 30, 2018 and 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General and Cemetery Funds for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

132 Bushnell Plaza » Bushnell, Flotida 33513 - 352-793-8885 * Fax: 352-568-1179 Member American and
Florida Institute of Cortified Public Accountants
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements on
pages 4 through 9. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. The required supplementary information for the proportionate share of
net pension liability and contributions can be seen on pages 75 through 77. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Center Hill's basic financial statements. The introductory section
and combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, if required, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combined and individual non-major fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 11,
2020, on our consideration of the City of Center Hill's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Center Hill’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the City of Center Hill's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sk, Ftiug e P b P

Linda L. Thigpen, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Bushnell, Florida

February 11, 2020



City of Center Hill
Management's Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2019

As management of the City of Center Hill, we offer readers of Center Hill's financial staterment
this narrative overview and analysis as of September 30, 2019, We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we
have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-iii of this report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City of Center Hill exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $3,545,744. Of this amount, $853,103 may be used to meet the government's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Center Hill's governmental funds
reported ending fund balances of $336,106, an increase of $76,191 in comparison with the
prior year of $338,748. The ending fund balance available for spending, at the government's
discretion, is about 97%.

At the end of the current fiscal year, Committed Fund Balance for the General Fund was
$9,562. Total Committed Funds for all Governmental Funds was $9,562 resulting from the
adoption of Resolution No# 2012-01 to maintain a prudent level of financial resources for
unexpected expenditures to equal no less than one percent of General Fund operating
expenditures. The amount of $9,562 is set by management until such time the resolution
criteria is not met,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This management discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of
Center Hill's basic financial statements. The City of Center Hill's basic financial statement
comprises of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statement themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City of Center Hill's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City of Center Hill's assets
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as Net Position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the City of Center Hill is improving or deteriorating.



Mﬁnagement's Discussion and Analysis
{continued)

The statement of activities present information showing how the government's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of
Center Hill that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fee and charges. The governmental activities of the City of Center Hill include general
government, public safety, physical environment, transportation, public works, and culture
and recreation. The business-type activities of the City of Center Hill include a Water and
Sanitation department.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10-11 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Center Hill, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Center Hill can be divided
into two categories: governmental funds, and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The City of Center Hill maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and
special revenue funds.



Management's Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

The City of Center Hill adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10-21.

Proprietary funds — Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of Center Hill
uses enterprise funds to account for its water services, and sanitation services.

Propriety funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprictary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the water, and sanitation services, of which all are considered to be major
funds of the City of Center Hill.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-21.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statement. The notes to the financial

statements can be found on pages 22-42,

Government-wide Financial Analvsis

The City’s, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Center Hill, assets exceeded liabilities by $3,545,744 at the
close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City of Center Hill's net position, 76% reflects its investment
in capital assets (e.g., land, building, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Center Hill uses these capital assets
to provide services to citizens consequently; these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City of Center Hill's investments in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Center Hill is able to report positive balances
in all three categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its
separate governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental Activities — General Governmental activities increased the City of Center
Hill's Net Position to $10,881 before transfers. Key elements of this decrease are as follows:



Management's Discussion and Analysis
{continued)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Total
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Current and other assets § 262748 0§ 336215 % 40,633 0% 49277 $ 303,381 £ 385,492
Capital assets, net 3,075,851 2,994,632 815,134 762,576 3,890,985 3,757,208
Deferred Qutflows 111,307 101,475 - - 111,307 101,475
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 3,449,908 3,432,322 855,767 811,853 4,305,673 4,244,175
Long-Term Liabilities outstanding 311,555 278,543 - - 311,555 278,543
Other Liabilities 333,177 371,273 29,831 24,393 363,008 395,660
Deferred Inflows 34,315 24,222 - - 34,315 24,222
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 679,047 674,038 29,831 24,393 708,878 698,431
Net Position:
Invested in capital assets, .
net of related debt: 2,728,896 2,683,079 - - 2,728,896 2,683,079
Restricted 9,562 9,562 - - 9,562 9,562
Unrestricted 32,401 65,043 825,930 787,460 858,337 853,103
Total Net Position $ 2,770,859 § 2,758,284 § 825936 § 787460 $ 3,596,795 $ 3,545,744
CITY OF CENTER HILL'S CHANGES IN NET POSITION Business- Type
Governmental Activities Activities Total Total
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 19,414 3§ 36,725  § 199,181 $ 213297 § 218,595 $ 250,022
Operating grants & contributions - 53,083 - - - 53,083.00
Capital grants & contributions 5,000 39,693 - - 5,000 39,693
General revenues:
Praperty taxes 105,928 126,216 - - 105,928 126,216
Other taxes 458,872 467,630 - - 458,872 467,630
Other Revenues 66,017 75,326 - - 66,017 75,326
Total Revenues 655,231 798,673 199,181 213,297 854,412 1,011,970
Expenses:
General government 168,173 242,358 - - 168,173 242,358
Public safety 190,759 195,728 - - 190,759 195,728
Physical environment 10,992 17,744 - - 10,992 17,744
Transportation 282,329 270,896 - - 282,329 270,896
Public Works 31,705 15,490 - - 31,705 15,490
Culture & recreation 67,322 71,120 - - 67,322 71,120
Water and Sanitation - - 249,260 249,685 249,260 249,685
Total Expenses 751,280 813,336 249,260 249,685 1,000,540 1,063,021
Increase (decrease) in Net Position
before transfers (96,049} (14,663) (50,079 (36,388) (146,128) (51,051)
Transfers in {out) 8,494 2,088 (8,494) (2,088) - -
Increase (decrease) in Net Position (87,553) (12,573) (58,573) (38,476) (146,128) (51,051)
Net Position beginning 2,858,414 2,770,859 884,509 825,936 3,742,923 3,596,793
Net Position ending $ 2,770,859 § 2,758,284 § 825936 § 787460 $ 3,596,795 § 3,545,744




Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

® Overall Governmental activities realized an increase in net position of $74,204, before transfers, The net position

increase is summarized below:

General Government $ 423,775
Public Safety {179,815)
Physical Environment 6,122
Transportation (119,005)
Public Works (13,433)
Culture and Recreation (43.440)
Total Docrease (Loss) $ 74,204

The net position decrease at September 30, 2019, was more than the decrease reported at September 30, 2018, by
$22,081. The decrease is attributed to the Transportation department’s increase in operating expenses and
depreciation,

Business-type Activities

The City's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government- wide financial
statements, but in more detail,

As of the end of the fiscal yvear 2019, the City's water and sanitation reported a decrease in net position of $36,388
before transfers, The decrease in net position is due to depreciation expense not covered by revenues in the amount

of $52,564.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Fund

As noted earlier, the City of Center Hill uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements,

Governmentad finds — the focus of the City of Center Hill's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Clenter Hill's
financing requirements, In particular, unassigned Fund Balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal vear,

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Center Hill's governmental funds reported combined ending Fund Balances
of $321,708 compared to $259,915 for the period ending September 30, 2018,

The general fund is the chief operating find of the City of Center Hill. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total Fund
Balance of the governmental funds was $139,733 while the total Unassigned Fund Balance reached $130,171. As a measure
of the governmental fund's liquidity it may be useful to compare the total Fund Balance of $321,708 to {otal find expenditures
of $724,571. Total govemmental funds current year excess revenues over expenditures are 24% of the unassigned Fund
Balance.

The Fund Balance of the City of Center Hill's general fund; increased by $126,323 before transfers, during the
current fiscal year. However, of the increase, the General Fund had to subsidize the Transportation Fund to the extent
of $176,975.

Proprietary funds — The City of Center Hill's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
governmental-wide financial statements, but in more detail.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(concluded)

Unrestricted net position combined with Invested Net Capital Assets of the water, and sanitation fund at the end of the year
amounted to $787,450. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in discussion of
the City of Center Hill's business-type activitics.

Budgetary _Highlights
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget are briefly summarized as follows:

® Federal Disaster Relief was budgeted in the General Fund rather than the Transportation Fund in the amount of
$53,083.

e Depreciation expense in the amount of $52,800 was not budgeted in the Water Fund,

¢  (Cemetery Fund income did not include the annuity bonus in the amount of $7209.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration and the Transportation Fund

Capital Assets. The City of Center Hill's investment in capital assets, net of related debt, for its governmental and
business-type activities as of September 30, 2019 amounted to $2,683,079 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, building, improvements, machinery and equipment.

Capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

The City's Legislative fund acquired land in the amount of $12,524. The Police department acquited equipment in the
amount of $2,132, and the Transportation Fund acquired equipment in the amount of $34,335.,

Long-term debt. The city of Center Hill's total debt decreased by $35,402. The proceeds of the debt remaining in the
current fiscal year was used in the prior years to finance the hurricane shelter, infrastructure repairs and equipment
purchases. (Included in the equipment purchases, was a street sweeper in the amount of $191,930).

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

Economic Factors, Center Hill is reported as being one of the fastest growing Citiss next to Bushnell and Wildwood.
Center Hill is strategically located close to Inmterstate 75 and the Florida Turnpike. Our location provides easy
transportation access to both of these metropolitan areas.

Based on current trends and projected growth, it is anticipated that the outer parts of the City will have the most impact
on the commereial sector of the City of Center Hill. As such, it will pregent the City with significant challenges in order
to preserve adopted level of service of its current infrastructure while allowing quality developments in the area; however,
the projected growth will also bring extra revenue that is much needed to provide the improvements in infrastructure that
the City is facing in the upcoming year. The Meat Packing Plant is scheduled to be up and running in the coming months
that will employ around 260 people which will provide much needed tax revenue.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Center Hill's finances for all those with an
interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or reports for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the City Clerk, PO Box 649, Center Hill, FL 33514,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL

STATEMENT OF NET POSTION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Equivalents $ 306,630 $ 24,674 $ 331,304
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 2,973 18,105 21,078
Prepaid Expenses 6,498 6,498
Due from Other Governments 26,612 - 26,612
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 372,003 - 372,003
Building and System 663,812 750,384 1,414,196
Improvements Other Than Buildings 1,689,575 - 1,689,575
Equipment 269,242 12,192 281,434
Total Assets 3,330,847 811,853 4,142,700
DEFERRED OQUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows - FRS-PP 86,514 - 86,514
Deferred Outflows - FRS-HIS 14,961 - 14,961
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 101,475 - 101,475
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 109 - 109
Customer Deposits - 24,175 24,175
Net Pension Liability - FRS PP 229,877 - 229,877
Net Pension Liability - FRS HIS 86,814 - 86,816
OTHER LIABILITIES:
Compensated Absences 21,459 218 21,677
Notes due within one year 36,936 - 36,936
Due in more than ong vear 274.619 - 274,619
Total Liabilities 649,816 24,393 674,209
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows - FRS PP 15,879 - 15,879
Deferred Inflows - FRS HIS 8.343 - 8.343
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 24,222 - 24,222
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 2,683,079 - 2,683,079
Restricted 9,562 - 9,562
Unrestricted 05,643 787,460 853.103
Total Net Position $ 2,758,284 5 787,460 $ 3.545.744

The notes to the financial statemenis are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2019

MAJOR FUNDS
TOTAL
SPECIAL REVENUR GOVERNMENTAL
ASSETS GENERAL FUND-CEMETERY NON MAJOR FUND FUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash and Equivalents $ 118,087 $ 188,543 $ - b 306,630
Agcounts Receivable (net of
allowance for uncollectibles) 2,973 - - 2,973
Due from Other Governments 18,782 - 7,830 26,612
Total Assets $ 139,842 3 188,543 $ 7,830 $ 336,215
LIABTLITIES
Accounts Payable 109 - - 109
Total Liabilities 109 ) - - 109
FUND BALANCES:
Committed 9,567 - - 9,567
Assigned - 188,543 7,830 196,373
Unassigned 130,166 - - 130,166
Total Fund Balances 139,733 188,543 7,830 336,106
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 139,842 $ 188,543 § 7.830
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds, Cost of capital
asset $4,322,307 less accumulated depreciation of $1,327,673. 2,994,634
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Pension Related (24,222)
Deferred Outtlow of Resources:
Pension Related 101,473
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current-period and,
accordingly, are not repotrted in the governmenta! funds.
Long-term liabilities consist of*
Compensated Absences (21,459)
Notes Payable (311,555
Net Pension Liability (316,693)
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 2,758,284

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

MAJOR FUNDS
TOTAL
SPECIAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL  REVENUE FUND- NON-MAJOR FUND FUNDS
CEMETERY
REVENUES: _
Taxes $ 460,764 $ - $ - $ 460,764
Licenses and Permits 1,708 - - 1,708
Intergovernmental 112,851 - 74,245 187,096
Grants 39,693 - 53,083 92,776
Fines and Forfeitures 10,271 - - 10,271
Miscellaneous 22,194 23,866 - 46,060
Total Revenues § 647481 8 23,866 $ 127,328 b 798,675
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government 162,724 - - 162,724
Public Safety 201,747 - - 201,747
Recreation 29,041 - - 29,041
Transportation - - 176,933 176,933
Cemetery - 17,744 - 17,744
Community Redevelopment - - - -
Capital Qutlay 14,656 - 34,335 48,991
Grants & Grants for Capital Outlay 37,927 - 37,027
Principal 10,306 - 25,097 35,403
Interest 4,093 - 9,968 14,061
Total Expenditures $ 460,494 $ 17,744 3 246,333 $ 724,571
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 186,987 6,122 (119,003) 74,104
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In - - 119,649 119,649
Transfers (Out) (117,561) - - (117,561)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (117,561) - 119,649 2,088
Net Change in Fund Balances 69,426 6,122 644 76,192
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 70,307 182,421 7,187 259,915
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 135733 $ 188,343 $ 7.831 b 336,107

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part to this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Position are different because:

Net Change in Fund Balances--Total Governmental Funds $ 76,192
The net effect of various sales, transfers and other dispositions of assets:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the
Statement of Activities the costs of those assets are allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital depreciation of § 130,210 exceeds
capital outlay of $48,991. (81,219)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in
governmental funds, but a reduction of long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position. 35,402

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and are not

reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Change in deferred inflows and outflows of resources:

Pension Related (261)
Compensated Absences Increase (5,093)
Change in Pension Liability (38,259)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (13,238)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statements.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL, 2019 WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES:

Taxes § 119,770 $ 468,445 $ 460,764 $ (7,681)

Licenses and Permits 2,000 1,708 1,708 -

Intergovernmental 114,632 115,092 112,851 (2,241)

Grants 595,000 30,906 39,693 8,787

Community Redevelopment .- - - -

Fines and Forfeitures 4,500 7,277 10,271 2,994

Miscellaneous 15,000 77,723 22,194 - (55,529)

Total Revenues $ 850,902 $ 701,151 $ 647,481 $ (53,670)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government 156,818 162,446 162,724 (278)
Public Safety 179,241 - 205,645 201,747 3,898
Recreation 466,670 54,281 43,440 10,841
Capital Outlay - 2,132 14,656 12,524
Community Redevelopment - - - -
Grants and Grants for Capital Outlay 595,000 37,927 37,927 -
Total Expenditures 1,397,729 462,431 460,494 1,937
- Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (546,827) 238,720 186,987 (51,733)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers In (Qut) - - {117,561) (117,561)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - (117,561) {117,561)
Net Change in Fund Balance (546,827) 238,720 69,426 (169,294)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 174,204 - 70,307 70,307
Fund Balance, End of Year § (372,623) 238,720 $ 139,733 § (98,987)

The noles to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA,
CEMETERY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

VYARIANCE
FINAL 2019 WITH FINAI,
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES;
Charges for services:
Cemetery Lot Fees $ 11,400 $ 11,400 -
Cemetery Herdstones - - -
Cemetery Donations 4,900 4,900 -
Interest on Cemetery CD's 319 358 39
Total Revernues 16,619 16,658 39
EXPENDITURES:
Operating Bxpenses 17,744 17,744 -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Special Ttems Gain - 7,208 7,208
Net Changes in Fund Balance (1,123) 6,122 7,247
[und Balance, Beginning of vear 182,421 182,421 -
Fund Balance, End of year 3 181,296 3 188,543 3 7.247

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER SANITATION TOTALS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Cash:
Customer Deposits $ 24,674 $ - $ 24,674
Customer Receivables 10,214 7,891 18,105
Prepaid Expenses - 6,504 6,504
Total Current Assets 34,888 14,395 49,283
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Capital Assets:
Utility System - Water 1,889,943 - 1,889,943
Equipment 46,280 - 46,280
Total Capital Assets Before Depreciation 1,936,223 - 1,936,223
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1,173,653 - 1,173,653
Net Capital Assets 762,570 - 762,570
Total Nongurrent Assets 762,570 - 762,570
Total Assets $ 797,458 $ 14,395 $ 811,853

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

WATER SANITATION TOTALS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payable from Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposits $ 24,175 $ - $ 24175
Compensated Absences 228 - 228
Accounts Payable - - -
Total Current Liabilitics 24,403 - 24,403
Total Liabilities 24,403 - 24,403
NET POSITION:
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted - - -
Total Net Position $ 773,055 $ 14,395 $ 787,450

The notes to the financial statements ave an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

: WATER SANITATION TOTALS
OPERATING REVENUES: ‘
Charges for Services S 116,845 $ 96452 $ 213,297
Total Operating Revenues 116,845 96,452 213,297
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services 40,841 15,203 56,044
Garbage Contract Services - 78,927 78,927
Depreciation 52,564 - 52,564
Other Operating Expenses 62,150 - 62,150
Total Operating Expenses 155,555 94,130 249,685
Net Operating Income (Loss) (38,710) 2,322 (36,388)
Income {Loss) Before Transfers and Contributions (38,710) 2,322 (36,388)
TRANSFERS IN (OUT) (12,773) 10,685 (2,088)
Change in Net Position (51,483) 13,007 (38.,476)
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 824,547 1,389 825,936
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 773,064 3 14,396 $ 787460

The notes to the financial siatements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER SANITATION TOTALS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Received from Customers $ 115525 $ 96,452 § 211,977
Cash Payments to Employees for Services 40,841 15,203 56,044
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 61,086 70,594 131,680
- Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 13,598 10,655 24,253
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Transfers In (Out) (12,773) (10,655) (23,428)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 825 - 825
Cash at Beginning of Year 23,849 - 23,849
Cash at End of Year 3 24,674 $ - b 24,674

Continued on next page

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 34, 2019

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET WATER SANITATION TOTALS
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) 5 38,710y % 10,655 $ (28,055
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 52,564 - 52,564
(Increase) Decrease in Customer Receivables (1,320) - 1,320)
Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Items - 6,504 6,504
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable - (6,504) (6,504)
{(Decrease) Increase in Compensated Absences 142 - 142
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 922 - 922

Total Adjustments 52,308 - 52,308
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3 13,598 $ 10,655 § 24,253

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. The Reporting Entity

The City of Center Hill (the "City") is a political subdivision of the State of Florida located in Sumter County,
The City operates under a council form of government. The legislative branch of the City is composed of four
(4) member elected Council, and an elected Mayor. The Mayor and City Council are responsible for the
establishment and adoption of policy. The execution of such policy is the responsibility of the Mayor. The City
provides services to its residents in many areas, including public safety, highways and streets, water, sanitation,
culture and recreation, public improvements, and general administrative services,

The financial statements of the City of Center Hill, Florida have been prepared in conformity with generally
accept accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. Significant accounting policies
are described below:

B. Component Uni

By Ordinance No, 08-01, the City of Center Hill, Florida, has determined that a local Community
Redevelopment Agency (CRA) should be created to implement the local Community Redevelopment Plan.
All duties and powers of the local CRA shall be prescribed as required under the statutory provision of Section
1633.370, Part 111 of the Florida Statutes. The component unit is blended into the primary government. There
is no separate component unit reporting required.

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (ie., the statement of net position and the statement of changes in
net position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of
inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental aciivities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support,

Indirect expenses are allocated automatically and certain indirect costs are included in program expenses
reported for individual function and activities. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues,

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given fimction or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular finction or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported nstead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, and proprictary funds. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

D. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The goverpment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement Jocus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary find and financial statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Unbilled utility service receivables are estimated and recorded at year-end.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they
become both measurable and available.

Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers revenues
available if they are collected within 30 days of year-end. Revenues that are susceptible to accrual in the
governmental funds include property taxes, sales taxes, franchise fees, municipal utility taxes, and State and
County shared revenues. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the
City receives cash.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a related liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are
recorded only when payment is due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund (a major fund) is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Special Revenue Funds — The special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for
specified purposes:

Transportation Fund - accounts for the sireets of the City. The transportation find is not a major find.

Cemetery Fund — accounts for the proceeds from sales of cemetery lots and contributions to the City's
cemetery fund, which to maintain the cemetery,

The City reports the following proprietary funds: - Proprietary funds are used to account for the
City's ongoing activities which are similar to those found in the private sector, where the

determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration.

Water Fund - This enterprise fund (a major fund) is used to account for the activities of the
City’s water utility operations.

Sanitation Fund - This enterprise fund (a major fund) is used to account for the City's Sanitation
operations.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Proprietary fimds

Proprietary finds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise fimds are charges to
custorners for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to generally use restricted
resources first, and then unresiricted resources, as they are needed for their intended purposes, however, this decision is
fiequently made on a case-by-case basis based upon facts and circumstances, Revenues of the enterprise funds are
recognized on the basis of services rendered. Billing cycles of the enterprise funds that overlap September 30, are
prorated based upon meter reading dates,

Other

The effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program reverues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, 2} operating grants and conttibutions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments,
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include afl taxes,

E. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements -
and Florida State Retirement System

The City adopted the following Govemmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) staternents during the fiscal vear
ended September 30, 2018:

GASB 74/75 — The primary objective of this statement is to improve accounting end financial reporting by state and local
governments for post-employment benefits other than pensions.

GASB 81 — The primary objective is to fmprove accounting and financial reporting for irrevoceble split-interest
agregments,

GASB 82 — The primary purpose of the statement is to improve financial reporting by enhancing consistency in the
application reporting requirements to certain pension issues.

GASB 85 - The stafernent addresses various miscellaneous accounting issues relating to blending component units,

GASB 86 — The statement establishes rules for accounting for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets,
acquired with only existing resources, are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FL.ORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

1. GASB Statement No. 68 - Accounting and Financial Reporting For Pensions

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to the
employees of state and local governmental employees through pension plans that are administered through
trusts that have the following characteristica:

* Contributions from employers and non-employer contributing entities to the pension plan and
earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.

* Pension plan assets are dedicated to providing pensions to plan members in accordance with
the benefit terms,

* Pension plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, non-employer contributing
entities, and the pension plan administrator, If the plan is a defined benefit pension plan, plan
assets also are legally protected from creditors of the plan members,

This Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit pensions, this
Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount
projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of
employee service.

This Statement requires the liability of employers and non-employer contributing entities to employees for
defined benefits (net pension liability) to be measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit
payments to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed
to those employees' past periods of service (total pension liability), less the amount of the pension plan's
fiduciary net position,

Actuarial valuations of the total pension liability ate required to be performed at least every two years, with
more frequent valuations encouraged. If a valuation is not performed as of the measurement date, the total
pension liability is required to be based on update procedures to roll forward amounts from an earlier
actuarial valuation (performed as of a date no more than 30 months and 1 day prior to the employer's most
recent year-end).

25



CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2. GASB Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (Continued)

Florida State Retirement System

The Florida Retirement System (FRS) Pension Plan was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. All full-
time employees of the City may participate in the Florida State Retirement System (the Sysiem). This
System was created by the Florida Legislature and is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined-benefit, and
public retirement plan available to governmental units within the state of Florida, The System issued a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the State of Florida Division of Retirement,
Department of Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315, or by calling (850) 488-
5706.

All full-time employees of the City are eligible to participate in the System. Special risk employees who
retire at or after age 55, with six years of creditable service; and all other employees who retive at or after
age 55, with six years of creditable service; are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life,
equal to the product of: 1} average monthly compensation in the highest five years of creditable service; 2)
creditable service during the appropriate period; and 3) the appropriate benefit percentage. Benefits fully
vest on reaching six years of service, Vested employees may retire after six years of creditable service and
receive reduced retirement benefits. The System also provides death benefits, disability benefits, and
annual cost-of-living adjustments. Benefits are established by Florida Statute. Beginning in 2011, the state
mandated a 3% contribution to the plan by the employees. As of 9/30/19, the City has five employees that
participate in the Florida Retirement System.

The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of the Florida
Legislature. These acts provide that employers, such as the City, are required to contribute 11.26% from
10/01/18 to 6/30/19, and 11.47% from 7/1/18 to 9/30/19, of compensation for regular members, 27.50%
from 10/1/18 to 6/30/19 and 28.48% from 7/1/18 to 9/30/19 for special risk and 12.26% for retired police
from 10/1/18 to 6/30/19 and 12.81% from 7/1/18 to 9/30/19. The City's contributions and accrued benefits
to the System for the year ended September 30, 2019 is $31,474. In addition, employees that are not
participating in the DROP Program are required to contribute 3% of their gross salary.

The City contributed 100% of the required contributions to the System for the years ended
September 30, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, and 2015 are as follows;

Year Amount
2019 $31,474
2018 $28,609
2017 525,678
2016 $ 24,105
2015 $23,488

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions—At September 30, 2019, the City reported a net pension liability of $229,943 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and
the total pension Hability used to caleulate the nel pension liability was determined by an actearial valuation as
of July 1, 2019. The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on projection of the City's
long-term share of centributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the City's proportionate share was
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(continued)

1.

GASB Statement No. 68 --- Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (Continued)

0.000667688%, which was a increase of 0.000010017 from its proportionate share measured as of June

30,2018,

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflow of Resources and Deferred Inflow of Resources — For the year
ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized a Pension Expense of $37,998, On September 30,
2019, the City reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow Inflow
Resources Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience b 13,639 $ (143)
Change in A ssumptions 59,060 -
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Eamings
on Pension Plan Investments - (12,722)
Changes in Proportion and Differences between City
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 11,637 (3,014)
City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 6,202 -
Total $ 90,538  $ (15,879)

The Deferred Outflows of Resources related to pensions totaling $5,317 resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended September 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense

as follows:

Year

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Subsequent years

Total
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NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION O FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

1. GASB Statement No, 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assurnptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.60%

Salary Increases 3.25% Including Inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.90%, Net Pension Plan Investment

Expense Including Inflation

Actuarial assumptions for both cost-sharing defined benefit plans are reviewed annually by the Florida Retirement
System Actuarial Assumptions Conference. The FRS Pension Plan has a valuation performed annually. The HIS
Program has a valuation performed biennially that is updated for GASB reporting in the vear a valuation is not
performed. Actual future investment return experience for the FRS Pension Plan is not affected by the assumption used
in the actuarial valuation. Because the HIS Program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, no experience study has been
completed for that program. The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability for the HIS Program
were based on certain results of the most recent experience study for the FRS Pension Plan,

The acfuarial assumptions that determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2019, were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period of July 1, 2008 — June 30, 2013.

Valuation Date July 1,2018 July 1,2019
Measurement Date June 30, 2018 June 30,2019
Inflation 2.60% 2.60%
Salary increases including inflation 3.25% 3.25%
Mortality Generational RP-2000 with  Generational RP-2000 with
Projection Scale BB; details ~ Projection Scale BB; details

in valuation report in valuation report

Actuarial cost method Individual Entry Age Individual Entry Age

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected fiure real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmstic real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized in the following table for the FRS Pension Trust Fund covering the Pension and Health
Insurance Subsidy plans:
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1: GASE Statement No. 68 -- Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (continued)

Compound
Annual Annual

Target Arithmetic (Geometric) Standard

Asset Class Allocation Return Return Deviation
Cash 1% _ 3.3% 3.3% 1.2%
Fixed Income 18% 4.1% 4.1% 3.5%
Global Equity 54% 8.0% 6.8% 16.5%
Real Estate 10% 6.7% 6.1% 11.7%
Private Equity 11% 11.7% 8.4% 25.8%
Strategic Investiments 6% 5.9% 57% 6.7%

Total 100%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that
contributions from participating members will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
mvestments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability,

Sengitivity of the City's Proportionate Shave of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following
presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using a discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what
the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (5.9%) or 1-parcentage-point higher (7.9%) than the current rate;

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
5.90% Rate - 6.9% 7.90%
City's Praportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability $ 399,497 $ 229,643 $ 90,009

FRS Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued FRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The total pension liability for the FRS was determined by the plan’s actuary and reported in the plan’s valuation

dated July 1, 2019. The City’s net position to determine the net pension liability was determined on the same basis
used by the plan.
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(continued)

1.

GASB Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting For Pensions (continued)

The HIS actuarial valuation was prepared as of July 1, 2018, and the update procedures were to
determine liabilities as of June 30, 2019. The City's net position used by the actuary to determine the
net pension liability was determined on the same basis used by the plan,

The combined FRS Regular and HIS Pension Liability of Deferred Inflows and Outflows are listed
below:

Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 107,759
Net Pension Liability (316,760)
Deferred Inflows of Resources {25,457)
Net Pension Liability and Inflows over Qutflows of Resources $ (234,458)

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description- The HIS Pension Plan (HIS Plan) is a defined benefit pension plan established to
provide a monthly subsidy payment to retired members of any state-administered retirement system in
order to assist such retired members in paying the costs of health insurance. Persons are eligible for health
insurance subsidy payments who are retired under a state-administered retirement system, or a beneficiary
who is a spouse or financial dependent entitled to receive benefits under a state-administrated retirement
system, except those individuals who are pension recipients under Sections 121.40, 237.08(18)(a) and
250.22, Florida Statutes, or recipients of health insurance coverage under Section 110.1232, Florida
Statutes, or any other special pension or relief act are not eligible for such pension payments, A person is
deemed retired from a state-administered retirement system when he or she terminates employment with
all employers participating in the Florida Retirement System and:

For a member of the FRS investment plan, the participant meets the age or service requirements to
qualify for normal retirement per Section 121.021(29), Florida Statutes and meets the definition of
retiree in Section 121.4501(2), Florida Statutes,

For a member of the FRS defined benefit pension plan, or any employee who maintains creditable
service under the pension plan and the investment plan, the member begins drawing retirement benefits
from the pension plan,

The HIS Program uses a pay-as-you-go funding structure and the current statutory program
contribution rate is 1.66% of employer payroll, The most recently conducted full valuation estimated
that if actual future experience matches the valuation’s assumption, including 3.25% annual growth in
employer payroll, the current statutory rate will be sufficient to provide complete pay-as-you-go
funding of program benefits over the five-year period commencing June 30, 2019, Alternatively, if
zere employer payroll growth occurred over that period the full valuation estimated that a 1.8% of
payroll employer coniribution rate would be necessary for complete pay-as-you-go program funding in
the 2023-2024 plan year,
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1. GASB Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (continued)

Any person retiring on or after July 1, 2001, as a member of the FRS, including a mernber of the investment plan, must
satisfy the vesting requirements for his or her membership class under the pension plan as adiministered under Chapter 121,
Florida Statutes. Any person refiring due to disability must qualify for a regular or in-line-of-duty disability benefit per
provisions under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. Additionally, participants in the Senior Management Service Optional
Annuity Program and the State City System Optional Retirement Program are niot eligible to receive benefits fiom the HIS
plan.

Benefits Provided- The benefit is a monthly payment to assistretirees of state-administered refiromient systems in paying
their health insurance costs and is administered by the Department of Management Services, Division of Refirermertt. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a morthly HIS payment equal to the number
of years of credible service completed at the time of retirements multiplied by $5. The payments are at least $30 but no
more than $150 per month, pursuant to Section 112,363, Florida Statutes, To be eligible to receive a FIS benefit, a retiree
under a state-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which can includs Medicare,

Contributions- The HIS Program is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set by the
Legislature, Employer contributions ate a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS members, Forthe fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019, the contribution rate was 1.66 percent of payroll pursuant to section 112.363, Florida Statutes. The
state contributing 100 percent of its statutorily required contributions for the cutrent and preceding three years, HIS
contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which HIS payments are authorized, FIIS benefits are not
guaranteed and are subject to annual legistative appropriation. In the event the legislative appropriation or available finds
fail to provide fizll subsicy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled.

The City's contributions to the HIS defined-benefit pension plan are reported as a total with the pension plan contributions listed
above,

FPension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deférred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions- At September 30, 2019, the City reported a net pension lability of $86,817 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of Jane 30, 2019, and the total pension lability used to
caleulate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2019, The City's proportionate
share of the net pension liability was based on projection of the City's long-term shase of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined, At June 30, 2019, the City's
proportionate share was 0.000667688%, which was an increase of 0.000010017 from its proportionate share measured as
of June 30, 2018,

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense as listed above. Tn addition, the City 1ep0rréd
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pensions from the followin 2 SOLTCES:
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1. GASB Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (continued)

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience $ 1,054 $ (106)
Change in Assumptions 10,050 (7,096)
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Eamings on
Pension Plan Investments 56
Changes in Proportion and Differences between
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 4,788 (2,376)
City Contributions Subsequent to Measure Date 1,273 -
Total b 17,221 $ (9,578)

The deferred outflows or resources related to pensions totaling $1,273 resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended September 30, 2019, Other amounts reported as deferred cutflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

June 30, Inflows /Outflows
2020 1,274
2021 1,274
2022 1,274
2023 1,275
2024 1,275
Total h 6,372

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.60%
Salary Increase 3.25% Average, Including Inflation
Investment Rate of Return 6.9% Wet Pension Plan Investment Expense, Including Inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB,
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1. GASB Statement No, 68 --- Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (concluded)

Discount Rafe — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.50%. In general, the
discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at
the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projecied depletion date, Because the
HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be
immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS
Plan sponsor. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the
applicable municipal bond index.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 3.50%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.50%) or 1-percentage-higher
(4.50%) than the current rate:

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

{concluded)
1 % Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
2.50% Rate - 3.50% 4.50%
City's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability $ 108,298  § 86,817 § 70,842

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued FRS Comparative Annual Financial Report,

Combined Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Regular and HIS Defined Pension Plan

Outflow Inflow
of Resources of Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience $ 14,693 3 (249)
Change in Assumptions 69,110 (7,096)
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Farnings on
Pension Plan Investments 56 (12,722)
Changes in Proportion and Differences between
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 16,425 (5,390)
City Contributions Subsequent to Measure Date 7,475 -
Total 3 107,759 3 (25,457)
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferved Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (concluded)

2. GASRE Statement No. 74/73

The Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement (division) is part of the primary
government of the State of Florida. The division participates in the State Employees’ Group Health
Insurance Plan administered by the Department of Management Services, Division of State Group
Insurance (DSGI). The plan covers retired employees and is considered an ‘other postemployment benefits’
plan (OPEB). The OPEB Plan provides the same healthcare benefits to retirces as those provided to active
employees. Spouses and dependents of eligible retirees are also eligible for medical coverage. All full-time
equivalent employees of the state are cligible to receive postemployment health care benefits,

F. Receivables

Water and sanitation operating revenues are generally recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered
monthly, The amount of services delivered after the last billing date and up to September 30, 2019 is
estimated and accrued at year-end.

G. Capital Assets

K.

Capital assets; which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets (roads, sidewalks, drainage
systems, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $500 and an estimated useful life of more than two years.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets, the City chose to include such items
beginning October 1, 2003, the year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 34. As the City constructs or
acquires additional capital assets, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical
cost, Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value on the date donated.

Interest incurred during construction of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed. No interest was capitalized during the year ended September
30, 2019,

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
The City follows GASB 65 where a Deferred Outflow of resources — a consumption of net assets that
is applicable to a future period and Deferred Inflow of resources — an acquisition of net assets that is
applicable to a future reporting petiod,

Fund Balance

Implementation of GASB 54

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has promulgated Statement No. 54, entitled Fund
Balance Reporting and Governimental Fund Type Definitions. This standard makes two major changes to the
accounting for governmental finds. It is effective for all fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2010. The
statement is designed to do two things. First, it clarifies the definition of what activities are to be reported
within different types of governmental funds (general fund, special revenue find type, capital project fund
type, debt service fund type, and permanent fund type). No changes were required by the City based on
this standard clarification.
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G. Capital Assets
Capital assets; which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastracture assets (roads, sidewalks,
drainage systems, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful life of more than two years.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets, the City chose to include such items
beginning October 1, 2003, the year of fmplementation of GASB Statement No. 34. As the City constructs
or acquires additional capital assets, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at
historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value on the date donated.

Interest incurred during construction of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. No interest was capitalized during the year ended
September 30, 2019,

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the various
classes of depreciable assets as follows:

Buildings 25 to 30 Years
Improvements other than Buildings 10 to 30 Years
Water and Sewer Systems 10 to 50 Years
Infrastructure 30 Years
Equipment 510 10 Years

H. Compensated Absences
The City accrues accumulated compensated absences (unpaid vacation, sick and comp benefits)
when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Compensated absence liabilities are generally not reported in the governmental fund financial
statements, as these liabilities would not normally be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources.

The policy for payment of sick leave is upon voluntary termination of the employee, 50% of the
accumulated hours would be paid (85% for long-term employees with ten or more years of full-time
service) not to exceed 1,040 hours. The City accrues and records 100% of unpaid vacation pay up to a
maximum of 240 hours and 50% or 85%, as applicable, of unpaid sick pay at the employee's current pay
rate. The balance of compensated absences at September 30, 2019 was $16,594, The amount by fund is
$939, $9,749 for the Administration and Police Department of the General Fund, and $5,820 for the
Transportation Fund, and $86 for the Water Fund,

L. Long-term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-{ype activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.

T, Use of Estimates

The City policy for estimates is using a measurement basis and application in the presentation and
presenting in the financial statements. Estimates are judgements and are not precise. The City
estimates depreciation and bad debts.
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Second, it provides clearer fund balance definitions that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to
which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in
governmental funds as follows:

Non-spendable Fund Balance — represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not in spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid) or legally required to remain intact (such as
notes receivable or principal of a perimanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance — represents amounts with external constraints placed on the use of

these resources (such as debt covenants, grantors, other governments, etc.) or imposed by enabling
legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — represents amounts that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by a
formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making authority, the City Council. Committed
resources cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use
by the same type of action previously used to commit those amounts, either by resolution or by ordinance.
During the period ended September 30, 2011, the City adopted resolution No# 2012-01 te maintain a prudent
level of financial resources for unexpected expenditures equal to no less than one percent of General Fund
operating expenditures or $9,562 for measureable events.

Assigned Fund Balance — represents amounts the City intends to use for specific purposes as expressed by
the City Council or an official delegated the authority to assign amounts. This is the residual classification for
all governmental funds other than the general fund. The City Clerk has been granted the ability to assign
amounts to a specific purpose as part of the annual budget ordinance.

Unassigned Fund Balance — represents the residual classification for the general fund or deficit
balances in other funds.
Amounts are considered to have been spent when expenditure is incurred for purposes for which unrestricted

{Enterptise Funds) and committed, assigned and unassigned (General Fund and Special Revenue Funds)
amounts are available.

General Special Enterprise
Fund Revenue Fund Funds Total

Fund balances: .

Committed 3 9,562 $ - % - % 9,562
Assigned - 196,374 - 196,374
Unassigned 130,171 - - 130,171
Unrestricted - - 787,460 787,460
Total Fund Balances $ 139,733 $ 196374 % 787,460 $ 1,123,567
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NOTE 2: BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING
The following procedures are used in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. The City Clerk is responsible for preparing a proposed operating budget for the upcoming
year prior to September 30 that included estimated revenues, proposed expenditures and other
financing sources and uses,

2. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments and suggestions. The budget is enacted
through passage of a resolution,

3. The City Clerk is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any department, but may not
revise total department expenditures without the approval of the City Council. The budgetary
data presented is in agreement with the originally adopted budget as amended by the City
Council.

4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
substantially all funds. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles. Total budgeted fund expenditures within the governmental type funds
may not be exceeded legally. Appropriations lapse at the end of the year encumbrance
accounting for commitments are not used.

NOTE 3: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash Deposits

At September 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the City’s cash deposits was $331,004 and the bank balance
was $356,341, All cash deposits were held in qualified public depositories and were covered by Federal
Depository Insurance (FDIC) or by the Florida Security of Public Deposits Act (the Act); Chapter 280 of
the Florida Statutes. The Act established a multiple financial institution collateral pool with the ability to
assess member institutions to satisfy the claims of governmental entities if any member financial institution
fails. The ability to assess provides protection, which is similar to depository insurance,

Investments

Florida Statues authorize the investment of funds in time deposits or savings accounts of financial
institutions approved by the State Treasurer, obligations of the U.S. Goverhment and certain instruments
guaranteed by the U.S, Government. The City has invested in those institutions and instruments permitted
under the provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 218.415(16). As such interest-bearing time deposits and
savings accounts are in qualified public depositories, as defined by Section 280,02, Florida Statutes.

Fair Value Measurement

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 3: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
(concluded)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changing interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
The City maintains cash equivalents and other short-term instruments as changing interest rates have
limited impact on Certificate of Deposit investments.

On April 29, 2019, the City approved to convert $144,154.14 of money market Cemetery Funds to a Fixed
Annuity with an S&P 500 Point to Point Index Interest rate of 1.75%, capped at 10%. The City_received a
bonus percentage of 5% applied to amounts of $100,000 or greater. The bonus amount added to the account
was $7,208.

The Contract Value is equal to the Fixed Option Value or the greater of the Indexed Option Value or the
Guaranteed Minimum Accumulation Value, as applicable. The Withdrawal Value is equal to the Fixed
Option Value less withdrawal charges, or the greater of the Guaranteed Minimum Accwmulation Value less
withdrawal charges or the Indexed Option Value less withdrawal charges and recapture charges, as
applicable. The Death Benefit Value before the Income Date is equal to the Fixed Option Value or the
greater of the Indexed Option Value or the Guaranteed Minimum Accumulation Value, as applicable. The
Maximum Interest Crediting Cap for the Annual Reset with Monthly Averaging crediting method may
change once every policy year, and the Biennial Point to Point and Biennial Monthly Sum crediting
methods may change once every 2 policy years.

The City is a risk if funds are withdrawn prior to the end of the 10-year index option period. In addition,
withdrawals may be subject to withdrawal and recapture charges.

At September 30, 2019, the City had $20,114 in Certificate of Deposits, $7,501 in money market funds and
an annuity of $151,391 in a brokerage account from its Cemetery Fund.

Note 4: RECEIVABLES

General Water Sanitation Total Customer

Fund Fund Fund Receivable
Custormer Receivable $ - $ 10,214 $ 7,891 $ 18,105
Other Recelvables 556 - - 556
Net Receivables % 556 $ 10,214 $ 7.891 $ 18,661

Receivables are shown net of allowances for uncollectable which amounted to $420.00
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2619

Note 5: CAPITAL ASSETS
Transfers/ Transfers/
9/30/2018 Additions Disposals 9/30/2019

Governmental Activities:
Land (not being depreciated) $ 359,479 § 12,524 $ - $ 372,003
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Buildings 966,855 36,467 - 1,003,322
Improvements 593,849 - - 593,849
Infrastructure 1,586,067 - - 1,586,067
Equipment 344,111 - - 344,111
Transportation Equipment 422,953 - - 422,953
Total Accumulated Depreciation 1,197,464 130,210 - 1,327,674
Total Capital Assets net of depreciation , § 3,075,850 $ (81,219) % - $ 2,994,631
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets being depreciated:
Water System $ 1,889,940 $ - $ - $ 1,889,940
Equipment 46,281.00 - - 46,281

$ 1,936,221 $ - $ - $ 1,936,221

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Water System 1,088,375 51,203 - 1,139,578
Equipment 32,712 1,361 - 34,073
Total Accumulated Depreciation 1,121,087 52,564 - 1,173,651
Total Assets being Depreciated, Net 815,134 (52,564) 762,570
Business-Type Activities

Capital Assets, Net $ 815,134 $ (52,564) $ - $ 762,570
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS
(continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs in the Statement of Activities:

Governmental A ctivities:

General Government b 3,425
Public Safety 5,969
Legislation 418
Public Works 1,697
Recreation 37,986
Transportation 80,715
Total Depreciation Expense

Governinental Activities $ 130,210

Business-type-Activities:

Water $ 52,564
Total Depreciation Expense
Business-type Activities $ 52,564

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT
GENERAL FUND

On February 27, 2007 the City, by resolution No, 2007-02, entered into a Certificate of obligation with Sun
Trust Bank in the amount of $500,000 to finance road re-pavement and cost overage for the construction of
hurricane shelter. The City has pledged its obligation of payments out of the City’s utilities and franchise
taxes.

On March 1, 2017, the City, by resolution No. R2017-04, approved financing from Branch Banking &
Trust Company (BB&T) to pay the remaining loan balance in the amount of $188,414 to Sun Trust Bank,
wire funds in the amount of $191,930 to purchase a stroet sweeper for the Transportation department and
deposit funds in the amount of $20,656 in the City’s General Checking account for operating expenses, or a
Note payable to BB&T in the amount of $401,000. The City obligation pledge to SunTrust Bank for the
City’s Utility and Franchise income was released by SunTrust Bank on March 1, 2017. BB&T’s
Promissory Note contains a Collateral security agreement for the following:

A. A Mortgage dated March 1, 2017, to Lender on real property located in SUMTER
county, State of Florida,

B. Equipment and general intangibles described in Commercial Security Agreement dated
March 1, 2017,

The balance of the obligation at September 30, 2019 was $311,555. The obligation at September 30, 2018,
was $346,957 or a decrease of $35,402 as of September 30, 2019. The schedule of remaining annual debt
service requirements for the note is as follows:
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT
(continued)
Year Principal Interest Payment
9/30/2020 36,937 12,526 49,463
9/30/2021 _ 38,537 10,927 49,464
9/30/2022 40,207 9,257 49,464
9/30/2023 41,950 7,514 49,464
9/30/2024 43,768 5,696 49,464
9/30/2025 45,665 3,799 49,464
9/30/2026 47,644 1,819 49,463
Thereafter 16,847 152 16,999
$ 311,555 3 51,690 $ 303,245

NOTE 7: PROPERTY TAXES

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal and school
board property taxes are consclidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax
Collector. The laws of the state regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a consistent property
valuation method statewide. Florida Statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to
10 mills. The millage operating rate assessed and adopted by resolution 18.07 by the City for the fiscal
year ended 2019 was 4.3854 mills,

The tax levy of the City is established by the City Council prior to October 1 of each year and the Sumter
County Property Appraiser incorporates the City millages into the total tax levy, which includes County
and the County School Board tax requirements,

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value January 1 of each vear. Bach assessment roll
is submitted to the Executive Director of the Florida Department of Revenue for review to determine if it
meets all of the appropriate requirements of the Florida Statues.

Taxes are assessed on November [ of each year or as soon as thereafter as the assessment roll is certified
and delivered to the County Tax Collector. Unpaid taxes become delinquent on April [ following the year
in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 4% in the month of
November, 3% in the month of December, 2% in the month of January, and 1% in the month of February.
The taxes paid in March are without discount.

On or pricr to June 1 following the tax vear, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real property.
After sale, tax certiticates bear interest at 18% per vear or any lower rate bid by the
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 7;
(continued)

NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

PROPERTY TAXES

buyer. The certificate holder may make application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax
certificates after a period of two years, The County holds unsold certificates.

Delinquent taxes on personal property bear interest of 18% per year until the tax is satisfied either
by seizure and sale of property, or by the five-year statute of limitations.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters. The City transfers risk of loss through the purchase of commercial insurance.
Insurance against losses are provided for the following types of risk:

Worlers' Compensation and Employer's Liability
General and Automobile Liability

Real and Personal Property Damage

Public Officials Liability

Accidental Death and Disability

The City's coverage for workers' compensation is under a retrospectively rated policy. Premiums are accrued
based on the ultimate cost to date of the City's experience for this type of risk. There have been no significant
reductions in msurance coverage during fiscal year 2019. Settled claims have not exceeded the commercial
€xcess coverage's.

BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The City Council adepts budget resolutions for the General Fund, Transportation Fund, and Water and
Sanitation Enterprise Funds. The budget for the Water Enterprise Fund is adopted on an accounting basis other
than in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, Adjustments necessary to convert the results
of the Enterprise Fund operations for the year ended September 30, 2019, on the GAAP basis to the budget basis
are as follows:

Net Income (Loss) GA AP Basis - Water Department $ (38,710)
Increase Due to Depreciation 52,564
Decrease Due to Capital Acquisitions -

Excess Expenses Over Revenues, Budget Basis b 13,854

42



CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 34, 2019

NOTE 10: CLAIMS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies, principally federal and state governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures, which
may be disallowed by the grantor, cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such
amounts to be immaterial.

The City follows the practice of recording liabilities resulting from claims and legal action only
when they become fixed or determinable in amount,

As to date, Florida Grande Motor Coach (presently in bankruptcy) is indebted to the City in the
amount of $11,597, The City has been informed by the bankruptcy attorney that the claim would be
paid in full. However, payment may be delayed until the final lots are sold, subject to unsecured
creditors. The amount of this accounts receivable was deemed uncollectable at September 30, 2009,

NOTE 11: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has determined that there were no subsequent events, through the date of the audit
report of February 11, 2020, that would have a material effect on the financial statements at
September 30, 2019,

NOTE 12: CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENT GRANTS
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audits and adjustment by grantor

agencies. If any expenditure is disallowed as a result of these audits, the claims for reimbursement to the
grantor agency would not be significant.

NOTE 13: INTER-FUND TRANSFERS

Inter-Fund Inter- Fund
Major Funds Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund $ - $ 117,561
Cemetery Fund - -
Water, Utility Fund ~ 12,773
Sanitation Fund 10,685 -
Transportation Fund 119,649 -
Total Inter-Fund Transfers 8 130,334 $ 130,334
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS



GENERAL FUND

This fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures which are not
accounted for in all other funds. It is the largest and most important
accounting activity. It receives a great variety of general revenues and
finances a wide range of programs. Most of the City’s operation is
financed from this fund.



CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30,2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
ASSETS
Cash and Equivalents $ 118,087 $ 36,989
Accounts Receivable 2,486 862
Pre-paid Liabilities 487 -
Due from Other Governments:
Florida 18,782 35,289
Total Assets b 139,842 $ 73,140
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ 109 $ 2,833
Total Liabilities 109 2,833
FUND BALANCE:
Committed 9.567 9,562
Unassigned _ 130,166 60,745
Total Fund Balance 139,733 70,307
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 139,842 $ 73,140

The notes to the financial statements ave an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended September 30, 2018

VARIANCE
FINAL 2019 WITH FINAL 2018
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
REVENUES:
Taxes : $ 468,443 $ 460,764 $ (7,681) & 430,863
Licenses and Permits 1,708 1,708 - 2,140
Intergovernmental 115,092 112,851 (2,241) 111,288
Grant Revenue 30,906 39,693 8,787 5,000
Community Redevelopment - - - 1,586
Fines and Forfeitures 7,277 10,271 2,994 6,109
Miscellaneous 77,723 22,194 {(55,529) 14,596
Total Revenues $ 701,151 $ 647481 $  (53,670) $ 571,582
EXPENDITURES:
Current: :
General Government 162,446 162,724 278 159,029
Public Safety 2035,644.61 201,747 (3,898) 195,244
Recreation 54,281 43,440 (10,841) 39,907
Capital Outlay 2,132 14,656 12,524 43,260
Community Redevelopment - - - 2,224
Grants and Grants for Capital Qutlay 37,927 37,927 - 5,595
Total Expenditures 462,430.601 460,494 1,937 445,239
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 238,720.39 186,987 (51,733) 126,323
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Proceeds of L.T. Cap. Related Drebt - - - -
Operating Transfers In - - - -
Operating Transfers (Out) - {117,561) (117,561) (176,973)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - {117,561) (117,561) (176,975)
Bxcess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures 238,720.39 69,426 (169,294) {50,652)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 70,307 70,307 - 120,959
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 309,027.39 § 139,733 $  (169,294) $ 70,307

The noftes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COMPARED TO BUDGET

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended September 30, 2018

TAXES:

Ad Valorem Taxes

Ad Valorem Property Acquisitions
Local Government Infrastructure Surtax
Franchise Fees:

Electric

Utility Taxes:

Electric

Gas

Communications Services Tax

Total Taxes

LICENSES AND PERMITS;
Occupational Licenses
Building Permits

Total Licenses and Permits

INTERGOVERNMENTAL:
Grants - CDBG

Community Redevelopment Grant
State Revenue Sharing

Mobile Home Licenses

Alcoholic Beverage Licenses

1/2 Cent Tax

Total Intergovernmental

VARIANCE
FINAL 2019 WITH FINAL 2018
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
126,217 $ 126,216 $ 1 % 105,928
142,845 133,765 (9,080 136,376
84,558 88,604 4,046 83,040
68,224 64,178 (4,046) 38,960
1,145 1,089 (56) 1,036
45,456 46,912 1,456 45,523
468,445 $ 460,764 b (7,681) § 430,863
1,708 1,708 - 2,140
1,708 1,708 - 2,140
30,906 39,693 8,787 5,000
- - - 1,586
37.936 41,283 3,349 36,015
354 256 (98) 411
- 97 97 98
76,802 71,213 (5,589 74,764
145,998 b 152,544 $ 6,546 $ 117,874

The notes io the financial statements ave an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COMPARED TO BUDGET (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended September 30, 2018

VYARIANCE
FINAL 2019 WITH FINAL 2018
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
FINES AND FORFEITURES:
Forfeitures $ 7,277 $ 7,236 $ 4n % 5,089
Police Dept Revenue - other 3,035 3,035 - 1,020
Total Fines and Forfeitures 10,312 10,271 (41) 6,109
MISCELLANEOUS:
Interest Earnings 365 306 (59) 64
Mowing Fees 260 260 - 325
Miscellaneous Revenues 74,323 21,628 (52,695) 14,207
Total Miscellaneous 74,948 22,194 (52,754) 14,596
Total Revenues $ 701411 $ 647,481 $ - $ 571,582

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended September 30, 2018

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Legislative:
Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay

Total Legisiative

CITY CLERK:
Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay
Community Redevelopment
Grants & Grant Capital Outlay

Total City Clerk
Total General Government
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police Department;
Personal Services
Operating Expenses

Capital Outlay

Total Pelice Department

Building Inspection and Maintenance:

Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay

Total Building Inspections

Total Public Safety

VARIANCE
FINAL 2019 WITH FINAL 2018

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
$ 16373 § 16373 . $ 16,521
22,219 22,140 79 17,786

- 12,524 (12,524) -
38,592 51,037 (12,445) 34,307
82,283 79,978 2,305 79,671
41,571 44,233 (2,662) 45,051
- ) - 4,603
- . - 2,224
37,927 37,927 - 5,595
161,781 162,138 (357) 137,144
200,373 213,175 (12,802) 171,451
139,438 139,438 - 149,230
49,088.61 48,516 572.61 34,863
2,132 2,132 - 19,800
190,658.61 190,086 572,61 203,893
17,118 13,793 3,325 11,151
- - - 18,857
17,118 13,793 3,325 30,008
$ 20777661  § 203879 § 389761 & 233,901

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended September 30, 2018

VARIANCE
FINAL 2019 WITH FINAL 2018
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
CULTURAL AND RECREATION:

Parks and Recreation:

Operating Expenses 8 29,343 § 29,041 § 302 § 24,308

Capital Outlay - - - -

Debt 24,938 14,399 (10,539) 15,599
Total Parks and Recreation 54,281 43,440 10,841 39,907
Total Expenditures $ 462,430.61  $ 460,494 § (1,937  § 445,259

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS-CEMETERY AND
TRANSPORTATION

Special Revenue Funds account for revenues from specific taxes or other
earmarked revenue sources which, by law are designated to finance particular
functions or activities of government.



CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
CEMETERY FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

Cash / Investments

Total Assets

Fund Balance:
Assigned

Total Fund Balance

ASSETS 2019 2018
$ 188,543 182,421
S 188,543 182,421
FUND BALANCE
$ 188,543 182,421
$ 188,543 182,421

The notes to the financial statements are an integral parvt of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
CEMETERY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL 2019 WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAIL BUDGET
REVENUES:
Cemetery Lot Fees $ 1,600 $ 11,400 $ 11,400 $ -
Cemetery Headstone - - - -
Cemetery Donations 6,120 4,900 4,900 -
Interest on Cemetery CD's 2,450 319 358 39
Total Revennes 10,170 16,619 16,658 39
EXPENDITURES:
Operating Expenses 10,170 17,744 17,744 -
Total Expenditures 10,170 17,744 17,744 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over (Under) Expenditures - (1,125) (1,086) 39
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Special Items Gain - - 7,208 7,208
Transfer In (Out) - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance - (1,125) 6,122 7,247
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 182,421 182,421 182,421 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 182,421 $ 181,296 $ 188,543 $ 7,247

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
TRANSPORTATION FUND
COMPARATIVE BALLANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS 2019 2018
CURRENT ASSETS:
Due from Other Governments $ 7,830 $ 7,187
Total Current Assets $ 7,830 $ ’7, 187
FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance, Assigned $ 7,830 $ 7,187
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 7,830 $ 7,187

The notes to ihe financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
TRANSPORTATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

VARIANCE
ORIGINAIL FINAL 2019 WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES: .
Grants - FEMA $ - $ - $ 53,083 $ 53,083
Intergovernmental 71,389 68,362 74,245 5,883.11
Total Revenues 71,389 68,362 127,328 58,9660.11
EXPENDITURES:
Current: _
Transportation 162,015 176,999 176,933 66
Grants - FEMA - - - -
Capital Outlay 5,000 34,335 34,335 -
Debt Service:
Principal 17,000 17.841 25,097 (7,256)
Interest 8,650 7,097 9,968 (2,871)
Total Expenditures 192,665 236,272 246,333 (10,061)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over (Under) Expenditures (121,276) (167,910) (119,005) 48,905
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In (Onut) - - 119,649 119,649
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - 119,649 119,649
Net Change in Fund Balance (121,276) (167,910) 644 168,554
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 7,187 7,187 7,187 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ (114,089) § (160,723) $ 7,831 $ 168,554

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Water Fund — to account for the provision of water and sanitation services to the
residents to the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are
accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to, administration, operations,
maintenance financing and related debt service, and billing and collection,



CITY OF CENTER HILL, FI.ORIDA

WATER UTILITY FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS 2019 2018
CURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Cash:
Customer Deposits $ 24,674 23,848
Accounts Receivable-Customers 10,214 3,894
Total Current Assets 34,888 32,742
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
CAPITAL ASSETS
Water Utility System 1,889,943 1,889,943
Equipment 46,280 46,280
Total Non Current Assets 1,936,223 1,936,223
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1,173,653 1,121,089
Total Capital Assets 762,570 815,134
Total Noncurrent Assets 762,570 815,134
Total Assets $ 797,458 847,876

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
WATER UTILITY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payable From Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposits $ 24,175 $ 23,243
Compensated Absences , 228 86
Total Current Liabilities 24,403 23,329
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Total Noncurrent Liabilities -
Total Liabilities 24,403 23,329
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted 773,055 824,547
Total Net Position $ 773,055 $ 824,547

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
SANITATION UTILITY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS 2019 2018
CURRENT ASSETS:
Customer Accounts Receivable $ 7,891 $ 7,891
Prepaid Expenses 6,504 -
Total Current Assets 14,395 7,891
Total Assets $ 14,395 $ 7,891
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable - 6,502
Total Current Liabilities - 6,502
Total Liabilities $ - $ 6,502

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
SANITATION UTILITY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

NET POSITION

Unrestricted $ 14,395 $ 1,389

Total Net Position $ 14,395 $ 1,389

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
WATER UTILITY FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AN 2018

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services
Contract Services
Utilities
Operating Supplies
Professional Services
Repairs and Maintenance
Depreciation
Insurance
Other Current Charges

Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest Expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers and Contributions

TRANSFERS N (OUT)

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year

Total Net Position End of Year

2019 2018

$ 116,845 $ 106,389
116,845 106,389

40,841 52,993

15,541 13,156

5,688 5,053

5,591 9,841

18,741 16,273

7,657 2,859

52,564 52,800

4,506 4,385

4,426 3,420
155,555 160,780
(38,710) (54,391)
(38,710) (54,391)

(12,773) 2,161
(51,483) (52,230)

824,547 876,777

$ 773,064 $ 824,547

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
SANITATION UTILITY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

OPERATING REVENUES;

Sanitation Revenue $ 96,452 $ 92,792

Total Operating Revenues 96,452 92,792
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal Services 15,203 10,436

Sanitation Contract Services 78,927 78,044

Total Operating Expenses 94,130 88,480

Net Operating Income 2,322 4,312

Income Before Transfers 2,322 4,312
TRANSEERS IN (OUT) 10,685 (10,655)

Change in Net Position 13,007 (6,343)
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 1,389 7,732
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 14,396 $ 1,389

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staiement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
WATER UTILITY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019

2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from Customers $ 115,525
Cash Payments to Employees for Services 40,841
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 61,086

106,456
52,928
54,990

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 13,598

(1,462)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Transfer In (Out) {12,773)

2,161

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING

ACTIVITIES:
Principal Repayments- Note -
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets -

Interest Paid on Note -

Net Cash Provided by (Used By) Capital and Related

Financing Activities -

NET INCREASE ({DECREASE) IN CASH 825

Cash at Beginning of Year 23,849

699

23,150

Cash at End of Year $ 24,674

23,849

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this siatement.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
WATER UTILITY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) {(38,710) (54,391)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 52,564 52,800
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (1,320) Gn
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable - -
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Vacation Payable 142 63
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 922 95
Total Adjustments 52,308 52,929
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities § 13,598 § (1462

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
SANITATION UTILITY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received From Customers $ 96,452 $ 92,632
Cash Payments to Employees for Services 15,203 10,436
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 70,294 71,541
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 10,655 10,655
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES: |
Transfers In (out) (10,655) {10,655)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH - -
Cash at Beginning of Year - -
Cash at End of Year $ - $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
SANITATION UTILITY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TQ NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income _ $ 10,655 $ (6,343)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
provided by Operating activities:
Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid [tems : 6,504 -
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable : (6,504) 6,503
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable - (160)
Total Adjustments - 6,343
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 10,655 $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE

The City Council adopted budget resolutions for the General Fund, the Special
Revenue Fund and Enterprise Fund. The budget for the Enterprise Fund is adopted
on an accounting basis other than in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). The schedule in this section is presented to report
legal with the City’s budget resolutions.



CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(BASIS OTHER THAN GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

OPERATING REVENUES:
User Charges - Water
Connection Fee - Water

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services
Contract Services
Insurance
Materials & Supplies
Repairs & Maintenance
Utilities
Postage
Miscellanecus

Professicnal Services

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING (HXPENSES)
Principal Paid on Debt
Interest Expense

Capital Asset Purchases

TOTAL NON- OPERATING
(EXPENSE)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT), NET

NET INCOME (LOSS)

VARIANCE
2019 FAVORABLE
FINAL BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
5 116,136 $ 116,535 $ 399
310 310 -
116,446 116,845 399
39,905 40,841 (936)
15,541 15,541 )
9,869 4,506 5363
5,591 5,591 -
7,658 7,657 1
5,688 5,688 -
- 4,097 (4,097)
- 329 (329)
18,741 18,741 -
102,993 102,991 2
13,453 13,854 401
- (12,773) (12,773)
8 13,453 $ 1,081 $ (12,372)

The nofes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA

SANITATION UTILITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(BASIS OTHER THAN GAAP)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges - Sanitation

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal Setvices

Contract Services

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT), NET

NET INCOME (LOSS)

VARIANCE
FINAL 2019 FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

96,452 96,452  § -

96,452 96,432 ;

15,203 15,203 -
85,432 78,927 6,505
100,635 94,130 6,505
(4,183) 2,322 6,505
(4,183) 2,322 6,505
- 10,685 10,685
(4,183) 13,007 $ 17,190

The notes to the financiol statements are an Integral part to this financial statement,
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

BAILANCE TRANSFERS/ TRANSFERS/ BALANCE
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 9/30/2018 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 9/30/2019
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Legislative 3 166,647 12,524 5 $ 179,171
City Clerk 64,125 - - 64,125
Total General Govermment 230,772 12,524 - 243,290
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Disaster and Reliel 945,221 - - 945,221
Police 140,910 2,132 - 143,042
Building Inspections - - - -
Total Public Safety 1,086,131 2,132 - 1,088,263
PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT;
Cemetery 18,905 - - 18,905
PUBLIC WORKS:
Maintenance 95,599 - - 95,599
Transportation 2,115,345 34,335 - 2,149,680
Total Public Works 2,210,944 34,335 - 2,245,279
CULTURE AND RECREATION:
Parks and Recreation 726,562 - - 726,562
Total Capital Assets b 4,273,314 5 48,991 $ - 3 4,322,305

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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COMPLIANCE SECTION



IINDA I.. THIGPEN, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants
Linda L. Thigpen, CPA Lori G. Maddox, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor's Report

Honorable Mayor and Members of
the City Council
City of Center Hill, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
The City of Center Hill, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements and cash flows, which collectively comprise the City of Center Hill's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated February 11, 2020,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Center Hill's internal
contro] over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Center Hill's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Center Hill's internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance. We found the following significant deficiencies:

2015-04 — PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION AND PROFIT
INCENTIVE — Significant deficiency.

Condition: Depreciation Expenses is not presented or used in the City's Proprictary Fund Financial Statements,

Criteria: Depreciation or estimated depreciation should be recorded in the City's financial statements to be fairly
stated and in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

Cause: The City does not use Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for Proprietary Funds, Thus, Council
members and other readers of the financial statements may not be aware of the cost allocation of capital assets.
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Effect: Enterprise Funds are designed to be profitable. After including the depreciation expense in the current and
prior audits, the Water Fund had realized losses. The cost of capital assets should be recovered through revenues
generated by the City.

Recommendation: The City should develop a budget to encompass recovering the cost of capital assets.

Response: By Resolution 18-02 and 18-03, the City approved an increase in commercial and residential water and
garbage rates commencing October 1, 2018, The City will also be doing a rate study in 2020 to see if further rate
increases are necessary to make the Water Enterprise Fund profitable in coming years.

Our consideration of infernal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weakness or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Center Hill's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts., However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Center Hill's internal control
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

s, Phaggor 20 OPA

Linda L. Thigpen, P.A,
Certified Public Accountants
Bushnell, Florida

February 11, 2020
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LINDA L. THIGPEN, PA

Certified Public Accountants
Linda L. Thigpen, CPA Lori G. Maddox, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS MANAGEMENT LETTER REQUIRED BY

CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE STATE OF FLLORIDA, OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Honorable Mayor and Members
Of the City Council
City of Center Hill, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statement of the City of Center Hill, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2019, and have Issued our repott thereon dated February 11, 2020.

Auditor's Responsibility

We concluded our audit in accordance with anditing standards generally accepled in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States: (if applicable) the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirement, Cosi Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and Chapter 10.550, Rules of
the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards; (if
applicable) Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project and Report on
Internal Control over Compliance; (if applicable) Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs; and Independent Accountant's
Report(s) on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Prafessional Standards, AT-C Section 313, regarding
compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and
schedule, which are dated February 11, 2020, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter,

Prior Audit findings

Section 10.554(1)(i}1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been
taken to address findings and recommendations made int the current and preceding annual financial audit repert. Corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommnendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report, except
for 2015-04 that can be seen in the Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting on Compliance and Other Matlers on
pages 69-70 that is a finding in the preceding and second preceding audit reports.

132 Bushnell Plaza * Bushnell, Florida 33513 ~ 352-793-8885 « Fax: 352-568-1179
Member American and Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal authority for the
primary government and sach compenent unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless
disclosed in the notes to the financial staternents. The City of Center Hill was incorporated in 1925 by Senate Bill
No. 603 under Article VIII, Section 2 of the Constitution of Florida. The City's discretely presented component unit,
the City of Center Hill, Ilorida Community Redevelopment Agency, was created by City Ordinance No. 08-03 as
authorized by Part III of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, This component unit was closed at September 30, 2018,

Financial Condition and Management

Section 10.554(1)()5.a., and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures and
comnunicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the City of Center Hill has met one or more of the
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection
with our audit, we determined that the City of Center Hill did not meet any of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(0)5.b.,, and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition
assessment procedures for the City of Center Hill. It is management's respongibility to monitor the City of Center Hill's
financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management
and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1)(1)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendation to Improve
financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Special District Component Units

Section 10.554(1)(1)5.c, Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we commumicate the failure of a
special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, to provide the financial information
necessary for proper reporting of the component unit within the audited financial statements of the county, municipality,
or special district in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes, In connection with our audit, we did not
note any special district component units that failed to provide the necessary information for proper reporting in
accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes,

Additional Matters
Section 10.554(1)1)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions
of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on

the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In
connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.
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Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee,
members of the Florida Senate and the Fiorida House of Representtatives, the Florida Auditer General, Federal and
other granting agencies, Florida Small Cities Community Development Block Grant Program, the Council

Members and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those
specified parties.

e L T gaic B b coh

Linda L. Thigpen, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
February 11, 2020 -
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LINDA L. THIGPEN, PA

Certified Public Accountants
Linda L. Thigpen, CPA Lori G. Maddox, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUES

To the City Council Members and City Clerk
The City of Center Hill

We have examined the City of Center Hill, Florida’s (“The City”™) compliance with Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies, for the year ended September 30, 2019, Management is
responsible for The City’s compliance with those requirements, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on The
City’s compliance based on our examination,

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether The City complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government
Investment Policies, for the year ended September 30, 2019, in all material respects. An examination involves
performing procedures to obtain evidence about The City’s compliance with those requirements. The nature,
timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of risks of
material noncompliance with those requirements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not
provide a legal determination on The City’s compliance with the specified requirements,

In our opinion, The City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the year
ended September 30, 2019,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of The City and the Auditor General, State of Florida,
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Tnde R Tugpme 2 A CPA

Linda L, Thigpen P, A,
Certified Public Accountants
February 11,2020

132 Bushnell Plaza * Bushnell, Florida 33513 ~ 352-793-8885 ¢ Fax: 352-568-1179
Member American and Florida Institute of Certifted Public Accountants
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Contributions under the
following supplementary schedules present trend information regarding retirement
plans for the City’s Florida Retirement System. This information is necessary for a
fair presentation in conformity with Governmental Accounting Standards.



CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION
LIABILITY
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN (1)

2019 2018 2017 2016

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.000667688% 0.000657671% 0.000625404% 0.000647347%
City's Propertionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 229,943 $ 198,004 $ 184,990 $ 163,456
City's Covered Payroll 3 257,299 3 258,378 3 249,273 $ 239,207
City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

as a percentage of City's Covered Payroll 89.40% 77.00% 1421% 68.33%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the

Total Pension Liability 82.61% 84.26% 83.89% 84 88%

Schedule of City Contributigns - Florida Retirement System Pension Plan (1)

2019 2018 2017 2016
Contractually Required Contribution $ 20,703 $ 18,743 $ 16,281 $ 15,787
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required
Contribution $ 20,703 $ 18,743 $ 16,281 $ 16,281
Contribution Deficiency (Bxcess) - - - -
City's Covered Payroll $ 257,299 $ 258,378 3 249,273 $ 239,207
Contributions as a Percentage of City's Covered Payroll 8.,00% 7.25% 6,53% 6.81%

Notes;
1} The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, including restatement as of June 30, 2014,
Information for prier years is not available.
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION

LIABILITY

¥LORIDA HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN (1)

2019 2018 2017 2016
City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.000775917% (.000759690% 0.000763360% 0.00077585769%
City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 86,817 $ 80,406 3 81,622 $ 90,423
City's Covered- Employee Payroll $ 257,299 $ 258,378 $ 249,273 $ 239,207
City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
as a percentage of its Covered- Employee Payroll 33.74% 31.12% 32.74% 37.80%
Plan Fiduciary Net Pension as a percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 2.63% 2.15% 1.64% 0.97%
Schedule of City Contributions - Florida Health Insurance Subsidyv Pension Plan (1
2019 2018 2017 2016
Contractually Required Contribution $ 4,309 $ 3,977 $ 4,040 $ 3,977
Contributions in Relation to the Contractnally Required
Contributions $ 4,309 $ 3,977 b 4,040 $ 3,977
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) - - - -
City's Covered-Employees Payroll $ 257,299 $ 258,378 3 249,273 $ 236,207
Ceniributions as a Percentage of covered-Employees Payroll 1.67% 1.54% 1.62% 1.66%

Notes:

1) The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, including a
restatement as of June 30,2014, Information for prior years is not available.

2} Actuarial Methods and Assumption

Actuarial assumptions for both cost-sharing defined benefit plans are reviewed annually by the Florida

Retirement System Actuarial Conference. The FRS Pension Plan has & valuation performed annually.

The IS Program has a valuation performed biennially that is updated for GASB reporting in the year &
valuation is iot petformed. The most recent experience study for the FRS Pension Plan was completed

in 2019 for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2018. Becauge the HIS Program is funded on a
pay-as-you-go basis, no experience study has been completed for that program, The actuarial
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CITY OF CENTER HILL, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE PENSION
LIABILITY
FLORIDA HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN (1)

assumptions that determined the total pension liability for the HIS Program were based on certain results of
the most recent experience study for the FRS Pension Plan.

The total pension liability for each cost-sharing defined benefit plan was determined using the individual entry age
actuarial cost method. Inflation increases for both plans is assumed at 2.60%. Payroll growth, inchiding inflation,
for both plans is assumed at 3.25%. Both the discount rate and the long-term expected rate of return used for FRS
Pension Plan investments is 6.9%. The plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for
calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Because the HIS Program uses a pay-as-you-go funding structure, a municipal bond rate of 3.5% was used to
determine the total pension lability for the program (Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond
Index). Mortality assumptions for both plans were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB
tables. '

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2019:

o FRS: The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 7.00% to 6.90%, and the
active member mortality assumption was updated.

¢ HIS: The municipal rate used fo determine total pension liability was decreased from 3.87%
to 3.50%.
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